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Ms, Amands Hall
Dolphin Line, Inc.

4521 Higgins Road
Mobile, Alabama 36619

SUBIECT:  Dolphin Line, nc.
Consent Agreement and Final Order
Docket No, CERCLAA04-2011-2023(b}

Dear Mg, Hall:

Enclosed please find an executed copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order
{CAFO) that resolves the EPCRA matter (Docket Number CERCLA-04-2011-2025(bY)
involving Dolphin Line, In¢, The CAFO was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as
required by 40 C.F.R. Part 22 and became effective on date of filing.

Penalty payment of $2,200 has been received and the U.S. Egvironmental
Protection Agency, Region 4, Emergency Planning and Comnanity Right-to-Know Act
Enforcement Section considers this matter closed.

Also enclosed, please find a copy of the “Notice of Securities and Exchange
Commission Registrants’ Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Procesdings.” This
dovument puts you on notice of your potential duty i disclose to the Security and
Exchange Commission (SECY any environmental enforcement actions taken by the EPA.
if you have any questions with regards to the SECs environmental disclosure
requirements, you may refer to the contact phone number at the bottom of the SEC
Notice,

If you have any questions, please call Mr. Robert Bookman at (404} 562-9169.

Sincerely

FPCRA Enforcement Section
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 4
IN THE MATTER OF ) A=
Dolphin Line, Ine. 3 Docket Number: CERCLA-04-2011-2025(5) f.‘
Respondent, ; {“ s
) =
S
CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER
L. Nature of the Action
i. This is a civil penalty procoeding pursuant to Section 109 of the Comprehensive

Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, 42 U.8.,

§ 9609 and pursuant 1© the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing Administrative Assessment
of Civil Penalties, and the Revocution/Termination or Suspension of Permits {Consolidated
Rules), codified a1 40 C.F.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the Air, Pesticides and
Toxics Management Division, Region 4, United Stafos Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)L
Respondent is Dolphin Line, Inc,

2. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement
pursuant 10 40 C.F.K. § 22.18(h; and desire to resolve this matter and settic the allegations
described herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the uking of any evidence or
testimony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matier, and in
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(bj and 22.18(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order
{(CAFQ) will simultaneously commence and conclude this matter.

1. Preliminary Statements

3. The authority to take action under Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C, § 9609 is
vesied in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority
urder CERCLA to the Regional Administrators by FPA Dglegation 14-31 dated May 11, 1994.
The Regional Administrator, Region 4, has redelegated 1o the Director, Air, Pesticides and
Toxics Manugement Division, the authority under CERCLA by EPA Region 4 Delegation 14-31
dated March 8, 1999, and updated August 6, 2004. Pursuant to these delegations, the Director of
the Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management Division has the authority to commonce an
enforcement action as the Complainant in this matter.

4, Respondent, Dolphin Line, Inc,, is doing business in the State of Alabama.

5. Respondent is & "person” as defined in Section 10121) of CERCLA, 42 US.C.
§ 9501213,



6. Respondent has a "motor vehicle” (facitity) as that term is defined by Section
101{9) of CRRCLA, 42 ULS.C. § 3601(9),

7. Respondent’s fucility, at the time of the accidental rclease, was located af
Interstale 16, milepost 20, Pass Christian, Mississippt.

X, Respondent is an "owner or operator” of the facility as that term is defined by
Section 101 (20)(A) of CERCLA, 42 U.5.C. § 9601200 A}

11l BPA's Allegation of Violation

g Section 102¢ay of CERCLA, 42 U.8.C. § 9602(a), required the Administrator of
EPA to publish » list of substances designated as hazardous substances which, whern released
inte the environment, may present substantial danger to public heslth or welfare or the
environment and to promulgate regulations establishing the quantity of any hazardous substance
the release of which was required to be reporied under Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 US.C.
§ 9603(a). EPA has published and amended such g list, including the corresponding reportable
quantitics (RQ) for those substances, This list which s codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 302, was
initially published on April 4, 1985 (30 Fed. Reg, 13474) and is periodically amendexd.

10.  Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 US.C. § 9603(a}, and the regulations found at
43 CIVR. § 302.6, require a person in charge of a facility, as soon as he ot she has knowledge of
a release of a hazardous substance from such Lacility in an amount equal to, or greater than the
RQ, to immediately notify the National Response Center (NRC).

11.  Respondent was in ¢harge of the facility during the relevant period described
below.,

12, Sodium hydroxide is a "hazardous substance” as that term is defined by
Section 101(14) of CERCLA, 42 L1.8.C. § 960114}, with an RQ o1 1,060 pounds, as
specified in 40 CF.R. § 3024,

13. On June 1, 2010, Respondent had a release of sodium hydroxide above the
RO from the facility,

14, EPA alieges that Respondent violated the notification requirements of Section
103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 5603{a), by failing to immediately notify the NRC as soon as
Respondent had knowledge of the relesse of sodiurs hydroxide in an amount equal 1o or greater
than its RQ from Respondent’s facility, and is therefore subject to the assessment of penalties
under Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C, § 9509,

15, Pursuant to Section 189 of CERCLA, 42 11.8.C. § 9609, and 40 C.F.R. Part 19,
EPA may assess a penalty not to exceed $37,500 for cach violation of Section 143{a) of
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C, § 9603{a}, that oceurred after Jannary 12, 2009, Each day a violation of
Section 103 continues constitutes a separate violation. Civil penalties under Section 109 of
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, may be assessed by an Administrative Order.
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V. Consent Agreement

16, For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jusisdictional allegations
set out gbove but neither admits nor denics the factual allegations set out above.

17, Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to appeal the
proposed final order accompanying the Consent Agreement.

1%, Respondent cotsents 10 the assessment of and agrees to pay the civil penalty as
sct forth in this CATOL

19, Respondent certifies that as of the date of its execution of this CAFQ, it is in
compliance with all relevant requirements of CERCLA.

20, Compliance with the CAFO shall resalve the allegations of violations contained
heroin, This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any Hability of Respondent to the United States
other than as expressed herein. Neither EPA nor Complainan! waives any right to bring an
enforcement action against Respondent for viclation of any federal or state statute, regulation or
permit, to initiate an action for imminent and substantial endangerment, or to pursue criminal
enforcement.

21, Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this
CAI'Q. The parties agroe that the seitlement of this maticr ig in the public interest and that this
CAFQ is consistent with the applicable requirements of CERCLAL

Y. Fipal Crder
22, Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of TWO THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED
DOLLARS ($2,208) for the violation which shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the effective
aate of this CAFQ.

23, Respondent shail pay the civil penalty by forwarding a cashier’s or certified
check, payable to "EPA Hawardous Substance Superfund™ to one of the following addresses:

BY MAIL BY OVERMIGIIT

U.S. Bavironmental Protection Agency U.S. Bank

Superfund Paymients Attention: Natalie Pearson (314) 418-4087
Cincinnati Finance Center 1005 Convestion Plaza

P.O. Box 979076 Matil Station SL-MO-C2GL

St. Louis, Missourl 63197-9006 St Louis, Missourt 63101

The check shall reference on ils face the name and the Docket Number of the CAKFO,

24, Atthe time of paymeent, Respondent shall send & separate copy of the check, and a
written statement thal payment has been made in accordance with this CAFO, to the following
persons at the following addresses:



Regional Hearing Clerk
118, EPA, Region 4
61 Farsyth Street, S.W.
Atlants, GA 30303

Robert Scogin

U8, EPA, Region 4

Air, Pesticides & Toxics Management Division
61 Forsyth Street, S.W.

Atlanta, GA 30303

Saundi Wilson

Office of Environmental Accountability
U5, EPA, Region 4

61 Forsyth Street, S.W,

Atlanta, GA 30303

25, For the purposes of state and federal income taxes, Respordent shall not be
entitled, and agrees not to atiemnpt, 1o claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made
pursuant (o this CATO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall
gonstitute a violation of this CAFO

26, For Federal Incosne Tax parposes, Dolphin Ling, Ine., agrees that it will neither
capitalize into inventory or basis nor deduct any cosls or expenditures incurred in performing
the 8FP.

27, Pursuani fo 31 US.C. § 3717, EPA is entitled o assess interest and penalties on
debts owed to the United States and a charge w cover the cost of processing and handling a
delinguent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the effective
date of this CAFO if the penalty is not paid by the date required. Interest will be asgessed at the
rate established by the Sceretary of Treasury pursuarnd 1o 31 U.8.C, § 3717, A charge will be
assesscd to cover the costs of debt collection, including processing and handling costs and
attorney fees, In addition, a penalty charge will be assessed on any portion of the debt that
remaing delinquent more than ninety (90) days afier payment is due.

28, Complainant and Respordent shall bear thetr own costs snd attorney fees in this
matfer,

29.  This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors, and assigns.

36, The following individual s suthorized to receive service for EPA in this
proceeding:



Caron B. Falconer

LIS EPA, Region 4

Alir Pesticides & Toxics Management Division
61 Forsyth Street, S.W.

Atlanta, GA 30303

(404) 562-8451

31, Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or
she s fully authorized by the parly represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that
party to it

V1. Effeciive Date

3. The effective date of this CAFD shall be the date on which the CAFQ is filed with
the Repional Hearing Clerk.

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO:

in Lines, In
w (j ; .
i 2 15 ~{Signature} Date: _

N&éz: a._j(f)?. \ a‘z{‘ V18000t {Typed or Printed}
Tie: 7y ’:_\,id\,(}»kf 1 CRa Y64 ) {Typed or Printed)
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
/ . ,
- . H . K, f‘ 1.1«‘ )
By: f.m [ o ?? Ry Y Pt Date: _Lp2 f=v i

Beverly H. Banistor, Dirdofor
Atr, Pesticides & Toxics

Muanagement Division
Kepton 4

g e
APPROVED AND SOORDERED this __ /' 7 duyof _ Jlae.ch 2011,

o & Jhis

Susan B, Schuhb
Regional Judicial Officer




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1 hereby certify that | have this day served a frue and correct copy of the loregoing

Consent Agreement and Final Order, In the Matter of Dolphin 1.ines Inc., Docket

Number CERCLA 084-2011-2023(b}, on the partics listed below in the manner indicated:

{aron B. Falcongr
LS. EPA, Region 4
61 Forsyth Street
Atlanta, {A 30303

Robert Caplan

1.8, EPA Region 4

Office of Environmental Accountability
61 Forsyth Street

Atlanta, GA 30303

Ms Amarda Hall
Dolphin Line, luc.
4521 Higginy Road
Mobile, AL 36619

Date: .% — / W/ /

{Via EPA’s internal mail)

(Via BEPA’s internal mail)

{Certified Mail - Return Receipt Requested)

United States Envirommnental
Protection Agency, Region 4
Atlanla Federal Center

61 Forsyth Street, 3.W.
Atlanta, GA 30303

{404} 3629511



EPA ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CONTROL NUMBER FORM

" (Atiach 2 copy of the Niasl orler and trapsmifial etter 1o Defendant/Respondent

This Form was orl ‘M:Saunéi Wilson an '3;’2 A}/
(Mame}
s the gegion 4, QRC, OEA # {404} 882~ 9504
(o) {Telephone Nucber)
l o USAQ COHLECTS FMO COLLECTS PAYMENT
Oversight Billing - Cost Package required:
SF Fudicial Order/Consend Decrer :‘ Sent with bill
BOJ COLLECTS

[: Nod sent with bl

!:] Oversight Billing - Cost Package not required

‘ \(RMM‘H&

[ ] ot s am ociginat dent [ ] hinss 2 modification
:A““"'?""-} . £ . —
PAYEE: Lot ;‘iéx;f K;;:“ LA

Nacoe of person andior Compasny/Murscipatity making the payomnt;

The Total Dollar Amounsé of the Kaceivable: §___ <., 2070

{ﬂiMWMdWWWWM See Diber side of this form.}
PR it s PR A
The Case Docket Numsber: PERS e A ey G877 Zoay (L)

‘The Site Specifie Superfiuwd Aceomid Nunber:

The Designated Regional/Hesdquarters Program Office:

The IFMS Accouats Seceivable Coatrol Mandber i§: Date

§f yoor bave any questions, plessecall: .  OF the Finuncial Manugement Section at:

S Caples of this form with so sttached copy of the fromt age of the FINAL

1, Dbk Treacking Offiess y 3 Oreiginasiog Offlee 1EAD)
Eaviconcenid Eoforovwnnt Sechion i Deesignsited Frogrsem Offce
(vepariowent of Justice RM 1847

P.0. Box T611, Beaaoin. Fraukiin S(xtioa
Washingten, D.C. 19684

RG: Cophes of this fwens with 4 sttached copy of the Brout page of the Adminivieative Order shoubd be ty:

1. Origlaating (Htiee 3. Tesignnied Frogram Office
s Fegianst Hearing Uk 4 Regionn! Counvel (EADA



